

recreational purposes. The attorney general shall provide appropriate documents of lease with an accurate legal description of the subject property.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE.

Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.023, Subdivision 1, Clause (a), this act is effective the day after final enactment and without local approval.

Approved May 19, 1981

CHAPTER 233 — S.F.No. 1174

An act relating to retirement; local police relief associations; authorizing the payment of benefits outside the United States in certain instances; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 423; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 423.811.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. [423.90] PAYMENT OF BENEFITS OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES.

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, any police relief association operating pursuant to this chapter, or any applicable special law, may pay a service pension or other retirement benefit to any eligible person who is not a resident of the United States if the person has established an account in a banking institution within the jurisdiction of the district courts of the United States, the banking institution serves as a trustee for the person and the payment of the service pension or retirement benefit is made to the banking institution.

Sec. 2. REPEALER.

Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 423.811, is repealed.

Sec. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This act is effective July 1, 1981.

Approved May 19, 1981

CHAPTER 234 — S.F.No. 1247

An act relating to education; permitting districts to purchase insurance coverage for the operation of leased buses in certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.39, Subdivisions 8 and 9 and by adding a subdivision.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.39, Subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. The board may rent a bus owned by the school district excluding a motor-coach bus to any person; for any lawful purpose; ~~any bus owned by the school district.~~ The use and operation of such Bus by such person rental shall not interfere with the use and operation of such bus by the district for the transportation of children to and from school pupils by the district. ~~Any such~~ A lessee ~~so leasing or renting buses~~ may use and operate the same as provided in this section ~~bus~~ without the payment of a motor vehicle tax thereon as provided by law. ~~Any such~~ The lessee shall be is liable for any and all claims for injuries and damages arising out of the use and operation of ~~any a~~ bus ~~so leased or rented;~~ and the leasing or renting of any such bus shall be conditioned upon ~~said leased from the district.~~ Except as provided in subdivision 9a, ~~the lessee or renter procuring,~~ shall procure insurance at his own the lessee's expense; ~~insurance~~ protecting ~~said the board and said the district~~ against any and all claims for injuries and damages arising out of the use and operation of ~~said the~~ bus.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.39, Subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. The board may provide for the protection of ~~school children in the district being~~ pupils transported for all school purposes or activities in district owned, operated, leased, or controlled motor vehicles against injuries or damages arising out of the operation ~~thereof of these vehicles.~~ If The board deems it advisable, insurance may purchase and be procured and paid pay for insurance from any funds available. ~~Any~~ An insurance contract covering such this risk shall contain as a condition precedent, a clause or provision expressly waiving waiver of the defense, by the insurer, that the district is engaged in a governmental function of governmental immunity. The payment of any insurance premiums by such the district shall does not hereby in itself make the district liable for any injuries or damages incurred by such the transportation.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.39, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 9a. If a school board has obtained insurance pursuant to subdivision 9 or section 466.06, it may also obtain and pay for insurance coverage to indemnify a lessee and to protect the board and the district, in any amount not exceeding the limits of coverage provided for the insurance obtained pursuant to subdivision 9 or section 466.06 against claims for injuries and damages arising out of the use and operation of a district-owned bus while it is leased or rented to the lessee pursuant to subdivision 8. The rental charge shall include the cost of this additional insurance coverage. The procurement of this

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

additional insurance coverage constitutes a waiver of the defense of governmental immunity to the extent of the additional coverage but has no effect on the liability of the board, the school district, or its employees beyond the coverage so provided.

Approved May 19, 1981

CHAPTER 235 — H.F.No. 25

An act relating to courts; providing for the establishment of misdemeanor violation bureaus for Hennepin county; changing the compensation of Hennepin county conciliation court referees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 488A.08, Subdivision 1; and 488A.13, Subdivision 1.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 488A.08, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **ESTABLISHMENT.** Misdemeanor violation bureaus shall be established at Minneapolis, Bloomington, ~~St. Louis Park, Wayzata, and Crystal~~ and at such additional places as a majority of the judges of the court may establish consistent with Rule 23 of the rules of criminal procedure and at any other northern and western suburban locations dispersed throughout the county as may be designated by a majority of the judges of the court.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 488A.13, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **JUDGES OF MUNICIPAL COURT SERVE AS JUDGES; REFEREES FOR CONCILIATION COURT.** (a) The judges of the municipal court of the county of Hennepin shall serve as judges of the conciliation court for ~~such~~ the periods and in ~~such~~ rotation as ~~the judges may~~ they determine. While ~~so~~ serving they shall act and be known as conciliation judges.

(b) The municipal judge who conducts the conciliation court hearing shall act upon ~~any~~ all applications to vacate a judgment or an order for judgment ~~whatever the grounds may be~~ and shall sign the certificate upon a removed cause; ~~but~~. However, any other municipal judge may act upon ~~such~~ an application or sign ~~such~~ a certificate in the event that the judge who conducted the hearing has not previously denied the application promptly or signed the certificate due to expiration of his term, death, disability, absence from the courthouse or any other cause.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.